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December 6, 2019 
 

AMENDMENT NO. TWO (2) 
 
IFB-PO-2000052; INA ROAD CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS LANDFILL PHASE 1 – CLOSURE (2INARD) 
 
Be advised of the following changes, clarifications and/or additions to the above-referenced Solicitation as stated 
in the following Amendment. 
 
SOLICITATION DUE DATE: 
The Bid Due Date has been changed to Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 3:00, Local Tucson Time. 
 
CLARIFICATIONS, CHANGES, AND/OR ADDITIONS:  
 
1. Coordination with an external archaeological monitor during construction is only required at the following two 

areas: The west drainage basin and the southeast drainage basin excavation. Contractor shall provide one 
week notice prior to starting work in these areas.  A footprint of the area is included as Attachment 1 to 
Amendment 2. 

 
QUESTIONS/ANSWERS: 
 
Q. 1)  Specification Section A01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls Item 1.01(E) states that the Contractor 

will be liable to pay a $5,000 penalty for any violation or citation of any rule, regulation, ordinance, etc.  
Please confirm if it is the intent that the County will penalize the Contractor in addition to the fines, 
penalties, etc. assessed. 

A. 1) Specification Section A01500 Item 1.01(E) will remain unchanged.  Compliance with Pima County Code 
Title 17, Chapter 16, Article II and III must be met. 

 
Q. 2)  Specification Section A01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls Item 1.02(B) states that a 20% opacity 

limit applies, but then in underlined text states that “any emission…”  Which statement will take 
precedent, 20% opacity or the visible dust emissions?  Additionally, this states that is a violation of this 
specification, and if so, does the $5,000 penalty mentioned above apply? 

A. 2) Compliance with Pima County Code Title 17, Chapter 16, Article II and III must be met at all times 
 
Q. 3)  Specification Section A01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls Item 1.02(C) states that continuous 

control measure to control the dust shall be used.  Is it the intent that dust control operations will continue 
even when no work is being done onsite (i.e. weekends, etc.)? 

A. 3) Compliance with Pima County Code Title 17, Chapter 16, Article II and III must be met at all times 
 
Q. 4)  During the pre-bid meeting it was discussed that the contours shown on the grading plan will not 

necessarily be what the site is graded to, and that the primary goal is to achieve the drainage pattern 
desired.  Please clarify if that is indeed how the contractor should base their bid. 

A. 4) See Amendment #1, Clarification 3. 
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Q. 5)  Specification Section A01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls Item 1.08(B) states control measures will 

be maintained until the area is permanently stabilized.  No provisions have been made in the bid 
documents for final stabilization.  As discussed at the pre-bid meeting, ADEQ will require that the site 
reaches 70% of the native vegetative cover.  Based on the site visit, the existing conditions have a decent 
amount of vegetative cover.  Please clarify how this should be handled in the bid. 

A. 5) Attachment 2 to Amendment 2 includes pages from the ADEQ SWPPP Template.  One (1) non-
vegetative practice is the installation of “temporary” stormwater basins which result in a non-discharging 
site.  Final Stabilization also refers to Construction General Permit Parts 3.1.1.1, which discusses the use 
of sediment basins.  The County requests that as an additional Best Management Practice (BMP) the 
Contractor water the final surface in order to create a crust over the bare soil. 

 
Q. 6)  In Amendment 1, the County provided calculations on the material available in two stockpiles.  Are these 

the only two stockpiles that have not been accounted for in the plan set issued for bid or is there 
additional material needing to be excavated that is not accounted for?  Since this project is not based on 
a unit price of excavation, the contractors need to have an accurate method of determining the amount of 
material needed to be excavated to account for the costs in their bid.  Is it safe to assume that the County 
will pay for any additional cut, not discernible on the plans or addenda via change order or force account? 

A. 6) The majority of the material in these two (2) stockpiles is accounted for in the plan set contours.  
However, the initial investigation that the stockpile drawing was based on was not exhaustive and 
therefore the Contractor must assume that the cubic yardage values stated are rough estimates of the 
actual cubic yardage.  No additional payments will be made for site conditions that differ from those 
portrayed in the plan set or stockpile drawing.  Per Article 43 of the General Conditions, before the 
conditions are disturbed, Contractor shall give immediate (within 8 hours) verbal notice to the County 
followed by written notice within 24 hours for conditions identified in Article 43 (a) and (b) 

 
Q. 7)  Is the furnishing, survey, and / or installation of the staking roads shown on Detail 3 part this contract? 
A. 7) The fabrication and installation of staking rods is not required for the Phase 1 work.  The staking rods are 

intended to assist with the installation of the final cover section which will be part of Phase 2. 
 
Q. 8)  In the description of the project, it was noted that this landfill received Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) for 

approximately 20 years.  Is it anticipated that the contractor will encounter any MSW as part of the 
trash/debris relocation or should the contractor base their bid on only relocation of Construction & Debris 
(C&D) material? 

A. 8) The County cannot make any assurances regarding the type of material that the Contractor may 
encounter. 

 
Q. 9)  Typically, in stormwater application the geotextile underlayment for rip-rap is not seamed (either sewn or 

thermally seamed).  Will the County permit the standard overlap as an acceptable alternative?  
A. 9) Geotextile underlayment for rip-rap may be overlapped two (2) feet if the material is not sewn or thermally 

seamed.   
 
Q. 10)  Does the County have an approximate flow rate for the water source onsite? 
A. 10) The standard flow rate is 1,500 gallons per minute.  The only current risk is that new regulations by ADEQ 

state that if the turbidity hits 2, the water cannot be used for dust control.  Because of that regulation the 
County has automated the system to shut down on a turbidity of 2, which is rare but can happen.  
Therefore a kline tank may be used to mitigate that risk. 

 
Q. 11)  Specification Section B02110 Site Clearing & Grubbing Item 3.04, will the stripping and stockpiling of 6” of 

topsoil be required, and if so, has that quantity been accounted for in the cut-fill quantities provided?   
A. 11) See Amendment #1 Clarification 1. 
 
Q. 12)  Specification Section B02110 Site Clearing & Grubbing Item 3.06 requires replacement of protected trees 

or plants.  Is there any located on-site? 
A. 12) The County is not aware of any protected trees or plants associated with this project.  Any protected trees 

or plans will be handled in accordance with Specification Section B02110. 
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Q. 13)  Will the County require the Contractor to remediate invasive and noxious plants, and if so, how is it to be 

paid for?  
A. 13) The County is not aware of any invasive or noxious plants associated with this project.  Additional work 

will be handled in accordance with Article 20 – Changes in work of the General Conditions. 
 
Q. 14)  Can the County release the information regarding the test pits as shown on the plans? 
A. 14) Yes, please see Attachment 3 to Amendment 2.  
 
Q. 15)  It was stated at the pre-bid that if borrow was necessary it would be handled as additional work, please 

confirm via Amendment. 
A. 15) No additional payments will be made for site conditions that differ from those portrayed in the plan set or 

stockpile drawing.  Per Article 43 of the General Conditions, before the conditions are disturbed, 
Contractor shall give immediate (within 8 hours) verbal notice to the County followed by written notice 
within 24 hours for conditions identified in Article 43 (a) and (b). .  Further, the County will not provide the 
Contractor with an incentive to be wasteful with the on-site soil. 

 
Q. 15)  What should we figure for the temporary fence?  The plans show a permanent fence detail.  Would a 

standard 6’ chain link fence with 3 strands of barbed wire suffice?  Should the costs to remove this fence 
be included in this bid, or will the final closure bid be required to remove the fence? 

A. 15) Yes, a standard 6’ chain link fence with 3 strands of barbed wire will suffice and should be included.  Yes, 
the costs to remove this fence should be included with the bid. 

 
 
All other requirements and terms of the Solicitation remain unchanged. Failure to include acknowledgment of all 
amendments may be cause for rejection.  
 
This Amendment is a total of twenty-one (21) pages. 
 
If any questions, please contact me via e-mail at Matthew.Sage@pima.gov. 
 
/s/ Matthew Sage  

Matthew Sage, CPPB; Procurement Officer 
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